Annual Report
2015/2016

The National Skills Authority (NSA) is a statutory advisory body established in 1999 in terms of Chapter 2 of the Skills
Development Act (SDA) (Act 97 of 1998). The primary function of the NSA is to advise the Minister of Higher Education
and Training on matters of skills development in accordance with Section 5 of the SDA.
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Foreword by the Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr BE Nzimande,
MP
I am pleased to receive the first Annual Report from the National Skills Authority
(NSA) and I am satisfied with the overall achievements made. The NSA is
not required, in terms of the relevant legislation, to provide me with an Annual
Report. However, the fact that this advisory body had volunteered its time to
provide me with a report indicates a positive direction to keep me informed
about its annual performance.
I am also pleased with a number of recommendations I received in the year
under review. Some of these recommendations includes advising me on the
National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) and the Sector Education and
Training Authority (SETA) landscape beyond 2018; the performance and
governance of SETAs; SETA grant regulations and the feasibility of establishing
a skills development centre that will be used to develop individuals, and in so
doing, to strengthen the systems and sub-systems in the sector.
I am also pleased with the progress made in critical research areas, particularly
the impact made by the NSDS over the last five years of implementation (2011
Dr BE Nzimande, MP
– 2016). I am proud of the progress made in gearing the NSA towards steering
Minster of Higher Education and Training
the new mandate pronounced in the White Paper for Post-School Education
and Training (WPPSET) of becoming an expert body which should possesses
high-level skills to monitoring and evaluate SETAs. I await in great anticipation the update and the final research report
regarding the impact of the implementation of the NSDS III, as well as the business case on the new role of the NSA.
I wish to congratulate the Board, management and staff for all the contributions and support throughout the year under
review.

Dr BE Nzimande, MP
2016
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Part 1
General Information

1.1 Chairperson’s statement
The 2015/2016 financial year marked the beginning of the fourth NSA term. The priority for the
fourth term Board was to take stock of work done in the third term, and to identify gaps and
areas of improvement to map out a way forward for the NSA’s new journey.
I am pleased with the work of the fourth term Board, especially given the timeframes within
which we had to work. There were nine months between the lapse of the third term Board in
June 2014 and the commencement of the fourth term Board, in April 2015.

Ms L Nare

Having assessed the work done by its predecessor, the fourth term Board began to take
strategic steps to deliver on its mandate. Our approach was informed by a structured process
that involved stakeholder engagement through meetings; a series of workshops and public
hearings to generate insights and determine a way forward. The deliverables included the
NSDS and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018.

Notable progress was made during the year, including the finalisation of advice to the Minister in both these areas. We
are pleased with the progress made in developing advice and comprehensive options to the Minister in this regard.
In addition, the fourth term Board began its work with the M&E Framework in response to the White Paper 2013, and the
coordination of research studies. One key study on the destination of the National Certificate Vocational (NCV) students
from Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) institutions, was done in conjuction with Swiss South
African Cooperative Initiative (SACCI). A second important project was the development of a data collection tool, done
in conjuction with SETA support and the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) Research Co-ordination
Unit. The third piece of work was the development of the Workplace-Based Learning Policy Framework that involved the
Work Integrated Learning (WIL) Unit, in collaboration with other DHET branches.
A key achievement in the year was the relaunch and repositioning of the NSA to its strategic partners and stakeholders,
including the SETAs, the public and the media. The relaunch provided the NSA with an opportunity to position its
mandate, new roles and responsibilities.
Of particular interest is that the NSA began to look into ways to leverage technology to maximise skills networking and
best practices within the industry. It developed terms of reference and commissioned a feasibility study to explore the
possibility of setting up a sizeable and virtual skills development and training centre in collaboration with the International
Labour Organisation (ILO). The centre aims to facilitate sharing of skills and best practices locally, regionally and
internationally, in order to capacitate and equip role-players in the skills development sector with up to date knowledge
and new trends.
While notable achievements were made in the year there were also several challenges, including resourcing and
capacity challenges, which continue to impact on other areas of delivery including research and the delivery of some of
the NSA’s priority projects.
Work still needs to be done in addressing the NSA’s transformative agenda, particularly strategy development and
advice to ensure that the SETAs reach a bigger percentage of people with disabilities, people living in rural and remote
areas and the youth.
We look forward to tackling the issues head on and developing solutions to address these challenges.
The year ahead seems to be full of promise. Having set the foundation for priority projects and focus areas of the NSA,
we anticipate that good progress will be made by the NSA, with the support of the Minister and the DHET.
I would like to express my gratitude to the Board of the NSA, the Executive Committee, Sub-committees and the
Secretariat as well as the support staff at the DHET. Thank you for helping us to realise progress in this financial year.
Our sincere gratitude also goes to the Minister of Higher Education and Training.

Ms Lulama Nare
Chairperson of the Executive
Committee 2016
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1.2 Director’s overview
During the 2015/2016 financial year, the NSA worked conscientiously at delivering on its
mandate. The year marked the beginning of the NSA’s fourth term.
In March 2015, the Minister of Higher Education and Training appointed a new NSA Board. The
new Board met for the first time in April 2015, and immediately began taking steps to realise
the authority’s strategic priorities and set the foundation for the implementation of the work that
had been started by the previous board.

Dr T Mashongoane

Recognising the pressure for change within the SETA landscape, much was done to provide
the Minister with well-consulted and informed advice on the NSDS and the SETA landscapebeyond-2018.
However, it must be noted that the fourth term Board of the NSA had considerable catching up
to do, seeing that there was a nine-month gap between the lapse of its predecessor’s term and
the Board’s appointment.

Background
The term of office of the third term Board ended on 30 June 2014. During its term of office, the third term Board had:
I.

 eviewed the skills development legislative framework to support the integration of education and training, and
R
to support the NSF Framework.

II.

 oordinated the consultation process on the review of the NSDS III and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018
C
strategy.

III.

 eveloped and imlemented a M&E Framework in response to the WP-PST which stipulates that the NSA should
D
take on a new role to become an expert in the evaluation and monitoring of the SETAs. The body conceptualised
the M&E Framework, and developed a concept paper on the M&E Framework for the SETAs as well.

IV.

 obilised business, government, community and labour constituencies, among other stakeholders, for them to
M
take full ownership of the NSDS III strategy, which is currently being concluded.

V.

 trengthened the M&E functions, with particular focus on the performance of the SETAs – looking at three main
S
areas namely, performance information; governance information and financial information. The M&E function,
through the annual implementation reports, also sought to explore the extent to which the SETAs and other
organisations have performed against the goals set in the NSDS.

VI.

 oordinated and promoted research development and innovation to create business enterprise opportunities
C
that can benefit communities and in particular vulnerable groups.

VII.

 tarting on 29 April 2015, the fourth term NSA Board looked into the work of the previous Board. It decided
S
to continue with some of the key focus areas that the third term Board had addressed (as mentioned above).
The fourth term Board took the decision to continue with the functions of the NSDS and the SETA landscapebeyond-2018, and concluded the consultation process on 31 March 2016.

Public hearings on the NSDS and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018
The NSA successfully held provincial public hearings across the nine provinces and the NSA aimed at mobilising business,
government, community and labour to take full ownership of the NSDS and SETA landscape. Various stakeholders
in the skills development sector were invited, including quality councils, SETAs, government, education and training
providers, community constituencies, research institutions, professional bodies and the general public. The Provincial
Skills Development Forums (PSDFs) were also encouraged to submit written inputs to the DHET.
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Roundtable discussions
Furthermore, the NSA hosted roundtable discussions in Pretoria on the NSDS as well as the SETA landscape. The
roundtable discussions targeted expert bodies, such as the Human Sciences Research Council (HSRC), the Human
Resource Development Council (HRDC), the South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA), Umalusi and the Council for
Higher Education (CHE). It also invited some international organisations, including the ILO, the Deutsche Geseelshaft für
Internationale Zusammenarbeit and other expert and professional bodies, to review public consultations and individual
submissions. The advice to the Minister on the NSDS and the SETA landscape was based on this consultative process.

M&E
The current Board continued with the development of the monitoring and evaluation framework that the third term Board
had started. It commissioned a study on M&E from the National Treasury, as it is one of two main government bodies
that specialise in driving M&E. This decision was taken in order to ensure that the outcomes of the M&E are aligned to
the requirements of the country, while simultaneously addressing the needs of the NSA. The NSA is pleased to report
that terms of reference have been concluded and the study is ongoing.
The Board also agreed to take forward the strengthening of the M&E processes in terms of SETA achievements, and
concluded the implementation reports for the last two years, namely 2014 and 2015. The 2016 implementation report is
being finalised.
The report is based on the eight goals of the NSDS III, and overlaid by the seven developmental imperatives that guide
the codes to promote specific key focus areas such as rural development, geographical expansion of skills development,
and the youth agenda, among others.
We also reviewed the extent to which the SETAs and branches within the DHET, including TVET, have performed
against these goals.
Focus was also placed on identifying the extent to which universities and community education have contributed to the
achievement of these goals. It is important to highlight that we have been very careful not to duplicate reporting, thus
avoiding overlap with monitoring of the SETAs.

Achievements
The fourth term Board focused its efforts on delivering priority strategic goals of the NSDS. It focused mainly on
Goal two, namely to increase access to occupationally directed programmes, both intermediate as well as higher level
professional qualifications. The goal speaks to the transformative role of skilling and reskilling the youth and adults of
South Africa through TVET college systems, in order to respond to the skills needs in our country.
Noteworthy achievements include the development of terms of reference regarding the M&E function of the NSA
Framework, and the commissioning of the impact study on the NSDS III.
The NSA successfully completed the National Skills Development Implementation Progress Report for the period 2013
– 2015.

NSA/ILO Skills Development & Training Centre
The NSA developed terms of reference and commissioned a feasibility study to explore the possibility of setting up a
skills development and training centre in collaboration with the ILO. The training centre will capacitate and assist in the
development of skills across the country in order to facilitate sharing of skills and best practices locally, regionally and
internationally. Another benefit of the centre will be to enhance and to promote effective skills development policies
and practices in SADC. Such a connection is aimed at minimising the costs of travel to acquire skills and to leverage
technology and innovations for engagement and information-sharing purposes. The centre will provide a virtual platform
for training, education, skills development and social dialogue on pertinent issues.
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Terms of reference in report commissioning concluded
The fourth term Board agreed on the terms of reference for commissioning research and approved the related budgets.
Having assessed available resources against work to be done, the Board agreed to commission only one research
project per year, until the authority is deemed able to conduct more than one research project annually.
During the year under review, the NSA was, however, able to conduct two research projects. It collaborated with Swiss
organisation, SACCI to conduct a study on the destination of the NCV students from TVETs. We await the outcome of
the study. The NSA’s second study focused on developing a data collection tool. This was commissioned in the latter
part of 2015/2016 and we are currently waiting for the results.
The NSA Board also agreed on the terms of reference for the development of the business case on the M&E. The terms
of reference for a five-year impact and evaluation study for the NSDS III were developed.

Administrative relief
We are pleased to report that the appointment of the fund manager brought some relief on the supply chain process.
The DHET appointed Nexia SAB&T (accountants, auditors and consultants) as the fund manager to assist in the
administration of NSA funds. This move has realised notable improvements. However, more still needs to be done to
ensure that there is a balance on resources to deliver on the entire spectrum of the work of the NSA.

Hosting the 2015 Workplace Integrated Learning (WIL) Conference
The NSA collaborated with the Southern African Society for Corporative Education (SASCE), and the University of
Johannesburg (UJ) to host the Africa WIL Conference.
The conference was aimed at bringing together educational institutions, industry and various government departments
as well as students and graduates; broadening the participation of different sectors and organisations; and sharing
information on WIL best practice.
The conference was held at the UJ and brought together a number of countries from across Africa. Discussions revolved
around how to address one of South Africa’s biggest challenges – that of providing workplace experience to university
graduates and students from TVETs – and to create a conducive environment for entry into the workplace.

Advice to the Minister
Advice on the development of a workplace integrated learning policy
The NSA hosted a two-day workplace integrated learning workshop, where nearly 500 people from universities, TVETs,
and public and private sector businesses participated in the development of a WIL policy. The development of the WIL
policy was co-ordinated by the WIL Chief Directorate in conjuction with other DHET branches. It provides strategic
advice to the Minister on the regulation of WIL. The recommendations also look into curricula and whether they are
applicable to workplace needs.

Advice on the SETA landscape-beyond-2018
The NSA is pleased to report that we have concluded consultation and provided initial advice to the Minister on the SETA
landscape-beyond-2018. Four options were presented to the Minister in terms of the formation of the SETAs.
The first option recommends a minimal change approach – with efforts in strengthening the performance of the SETAs
and in reviewing why the SETAs have continued to experience problems.
The second option proposes a clustering option. This option is in line with the White Paper that identified the possibility
of a significant restructuring of the skills system, with a further reduction in the numbers of SETAs over the medium to
long term, and taking on a collaborative approach to skills training along the supply chain.
The third option proposes the establishment of a National Skills Council. This option came about as a result of outcomes
of the Human Resource Development Council Task Team Report.
10
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The fourth option, which the NSA recommended as the preferred approach, proposes the integration of the SETAs into
the post-school education and training system. This approach proposes that the scope and boards of the SETAs remain
the same, while the State plays a stronger role, especially in sector skills plans. In this approach, the DHET would
manage centralised functions such as skills planning and other functions of the SETAs.
The DHET has started consolidating and analysing the advice. The process should be completed by March 2017, and
will be reported upon in the next financial year.

Challenges
While progress has been made since the inception of the fourth term Board, a lot of work still needs to be done. The
following are our key challenges:

Coordination of research and resourcing
Coordination of research, which is a fundamental aspect of the NSA’s deliverables, still requires a lot of attention, as
resourcing and capacity remain challenges in this space. More NSA secretariat managers are still needed in order to
effectively drive the critical M&E work of the NSA.

Reaching rural and remote areas
Another challenge is the lack of expansion of SETAs across rural and remote areas. SETAs are driven by economic
demand, and not all SETAs currently participate in all provinces. Our priority is to fully realise the national transformative
agenda and to identify ways in which all SETAs can expand to rural and remote areas and pursue their participation in
these areas in order to give equal opportunity for skills development in those areas.

Insufficient administrative capacity
Insufficient administrative capacity is a challenge that the NSA experienced, and this is handicapping the entire system,
as the organisation is unable to fully service and support the NSA structure. The fact that the NSA includes a board with
committees means that support is required, including secretarial, strategic, technical and logistical support. Personnel
limitations are affecting reporting processes, subsequent decision-making processes and overall progress.

Stakeholder relations capacity
One of the NSA’s challenges is resourcing for technical stakeholder management skills, which forms a critical part of the
work of the organisation. A lot more work needs to be done to address the skills gap in stakeholder administration and
technical stakeholder management expertise.

Procurement processes relief
The NSA often needs to find a balance between satisfying and complying with the requirements of the NSA Board and
those of the DHET. It is important to note that the appointment of the fund manager has eased the burden of satisfying
these stakeholder needs. The fund manager provides support in procuring some of the services that were previously
procured by the Department, including the supply chain management processes.

Skills gap regarding people with disabilities
While we continue to consider ways in which we can improve our performance in achieving goals set to meet the needs
of people with disabilities, a lot of work still needs to be done. The system struggled to meet our targets in this area. We
have identified a number of limitations presented by some of the programmes, as people with disabilities (PWDs) cannot
be placed in all occupations and programmes. This is one area where more openings need to be created to make sure
that we allow for inclusive participation and meet transformative goals.
The NSA continues to work with PWDs to ensure that their needs are articulated through a consultative process.
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There is a need to introduce programmes that are more adaptable to people with disabilities, depending on the form and
type of disability. We have consulted various roleplayers in this regard. “Green skills” will also play a part; we are looking
at suitable “green skills programmes” that will enable the participation of PWDs.

Key considerations
The NSA has made it clear in its recommendations to the Minister that if the process of developing the NSDS beyond
2018 is not completed on time, this will have a huge impact in the running of the SETAs, as it may call for the Minister
to further extend the NSDS and establish the SETAs. If the process does not conclude on time this may pose a number
of issues, including the financial burden and legislative processes that will impact on the delivery of the SETAs, thus
imposing a financial burden on the State. Therefore, the strategy development needs to be concluded before 31 March
2017. If not concluded, we would have to relook at how best to mitigate and manage the process.

Looking ahead
As we look ahead, our plans are to fast track the developemnt of the M&E framework and to begin to engage key
stakeholders. We also aim to address some of the administrative challenges to ensure that the NSA delivers to its full
capacity.
We are looking forward to the Skills Conference and Awards, which were postponed and rescheduled for October 2016.
Our aim with the skills conference is to share some ideas regarding the NSDS III and to recognise public and private
entities that performed well in developing skills in line with the NSDS. Furthermore, the conference will provide a platform
for organisations to exhibit their work and share industry good practices. Of interest is the fact that the conference will
also provide learners with the opportunity to explore these exhibitions to discover different career opportunities available
in the public and private sectors.
Our aim is to create an enabling environment for the private sector to work together with government in fast-tracking the
skills development agenda, and to facilitate a participatory environment where the public and private sectors can come
together in sharing industry best practices in order to meet our national transformative agenda and significantly close
the unemployment gap.

Gratitude
I would like to thank the Minister of Higher Education and Training for his leadership and guidance and the Board for
their conscientious efforts and direction. I would also like to express gratitude to the Director-General (DG), the Skills
Branch, the Executive Committee, the four NSA committees, the NSA Secretariat, and the entire team of the NSA for
their support and commitment. Everyone worked exceptionally hard during the past year and without them, none of
these achievements would have been possible.
Furthermore the NSA’s work was made possible by the NSA Chairperson Ms Lulama Nare, and the previous NSA
Chairperson, Mr Eddie Majadibodu who led for the first five months before being appointed to the role of the Minister’s
Advisor, and lastly Mr Thulani Tshefuta who acted as the NSA Chairperson for the remainder of the financial year.
I would also like to extend my gratitude to the public for their input in the public hearing sessions; the various organisations,
expert bodies, PSDFs, and SETAs that worked with us from time to time; as well as the staff of the DHET. Thank you.

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Director of the Secretariat 2016
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1.3 Report content and disclosure
The content and disclosures made in this report are guided by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), (Act No 1
of 1999 and as amended), and the National Treasury Annual Report Guidelines for Public Entities.
We have been guided by the Global Reporting Initiative principles of transparency, inclusiveness, auditability,
completeness, relevance, sustainability, context, accuracy, neutrality, comparability, clarity and timeliness as the basis
for our reporting on the environment, social and governance matters.
Summarised financial statements were prepared in accordance with the standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with the SDA and the Skills Development Levy Act
(Act No 9 of 1999).

1.4 Statement of responsibility
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
•

All information and amounts disclosed throughout this annual report are correct and consistent.

•

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from omission.

•

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on annual reports as issued by National
Treasury.

•

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the
relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury.

•

Through the Department, external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.

In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the NSA for the financial year-ended 31 March 2016.
Yours faithfully

Ms Lulama Nare

Dr Thabo Mashongoane

Chairperson of the Executive
Committee 2016

Director of the Secretariat 2016
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1.5 About the NSA
The NSA is a statutory body that advises the Minister of Higher Education and Training on skills development, and
monitors and evaluates the performance of SETAS for the benefit of South Africa and all its citizens.
The NSA operates under the oversight of National Treasury in terms of performance management and financial
administration.
Name: National Skills Authority
Physical address: 6th Floor, Room 611, 178 Ndinaye House, Francis Baard Street, Pretoria
Postal address: As above
Telephone: (012) 312 5066
Website: www.nationalskillsauthority.org.za
Stakeholder feedback on this report can be e-mailed to: Mashongoane.T@dhet.gov.za

1.6 Strategic overview
1.6.1 Vision
Our vision is: “The NSA – leading skills development.”

1.6.2 Mission
Our mission is to provide strategic advice towards an improved national skills development system.

1.6.3 Values
The following are the NSA’s core business values that underpin all we do:
•

Committed – motivated, diligent, passionate and disciplined in our approach.

•

Decisive – assertive towards our cause.

•

Integrity – acting in an honest, ethical, transparent, loyal, trustworthy and reliable manner.

•

Proactive – being forward thinking, visionary, adaptive and innovative in our approach.

•

Results driven – being client focused, goal oriented, performance oriented, responsive, exemplary, punctual and
productive.

•

Inclusive – collaborate, participate and consult to promote altruism and team spirit with stakeholders.

These values, together with the mission and vision, were revised in December 2015 to align with our changed mandate
and environment.
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1.6.4 Legislative and policy mandates
Constitutional mandate
The NSA derives its legislative mandate from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of 1996).
The constitutional mandate underpinning the work of the NSA is embedded in:
Chapter 2, Section 29 of the Constitution, which states that everyone has the right to (a) a basic education, including adult
basic education, and (b) further education, which the State, through reasonable measures, must make progressively
available and accessible.
Chapter 2, Section 22 of the Constitution, which states that every citizen has the right to choose their trade, occupation
or profession freely. The practice of a trade, occupation or profession may be regulated by law.

Other legislative mandates
The legislation that forms the basis for the work of the NSA is the SDA (1998, and as amended in 2008) and the Skills
Development Levies Act (1999).
The SDA (1998, and as amended in 2008) outlines the responsibility to advise the Minister of Higher Education and
Training on:
•

A NSDS.

•

Guidelines on the implementation of the NSDS.

The Skills Development Levies Act (1999) outlines the responsibility to advise the Minister of Higher Education and
Training on:
•

The strategic framework and criteria for allocation of funds from the NSF.

•

Any regulations to be made.

Policy mandates
The WP-PSET: The NSA to monitor and evaluate performance of the SETAs.
NSDS III: The NSA to advise the Minister on the performance against the strategy.
National Development Plan (NDP): Vision 2030: The NSA to promote access to education of the highest quality and to
promote an education, training and innovation system that caters for the different needs of the economy and produces
highly-skilled individuals.
Industrial Policy Action Plan 2013 (IPAP): The NSA to support growing industries and economies with a skilled labour
force.
New Growth Path (NGP): The NSA to support economic policy and the driver of the country’s job strategy.

Relevant court ruling
Case number: JR1110/13 – SETA grant regulation: this court ruling had an extensive impact on the NSA in terms of skills
development system-wide arrangements. The court suspended the ruling until end March 2016.
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1.6.5 Strategic outcome-oriented goals
The WP-PSET of 2013 set out a new role for the NSA in terms of M&E of the SETAs. However, the NSA is aware that it
is also required to perform its function in terms of the SDA, of which M&E forms part. It was therefore important for the
NSA to exercise its authority in a vigilant manner, recognising that while its work is guided by the current legislation, the
NSA is also expected to support the transitioning of skills development systems into the new PSET agenda. We defined
our strategic outcome-oriented goals as follows:
•

Align the role of the NSA with the SDA and WP-PSET mandate.

•

Strengthen the capacity of the NSA and Secretariat.

•

Provide advice on the National Skills Development Policies to the Minister and make inputs/participate in other
DHET related policy development processes.

•

Review the skills development legislative framework to support integration of education and training and the national
priorities of government (inclusive of the NSF Framework).

•

Develop capacity of skills development stakeholders.

•

Research, develop and innovate to promote beneficiation and business enterprise development opportunities.

•

Monitor and evaluate the work of the SETAs and the implementation of the NSDS III.

•

Promote and communicate skills development.

•

Support post-school education and training to realise national priorities.
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NSA

Organs of state

NSF Funds Allocation Strategic
Framework and Criteria

Appoint EO

Manage NSF records, reports
and AFS (to NSA)

Allocate skills levies and
determine NSF funds allocation

Appoint the EO / Act as
Accounting Authority

Manage SETA reports

Manage SETA SLA, plans and
performance

Provide financial and
administrative support

Interested Parties

The QCTO

Learning in and for the
Workplace

Conduct investigations into any SDA
application matters

The skills development forums in
each province

Manage skills programmes
subsidies

Register learnerships and
manage agreement records

Learner and Learning Programmes

Maintain a qualified and
practicing artisan’s register

Organs of state

Liaise with QCTO

Occupational Standards and
Qualifications

Establish a NAMB body in the
Department

Artisan Moderation and Register

NSF

SETAs

NSA

Education and skills
development providers

Director-General

Comment on NSF AFS and Annual
Report

SETAs

The National Skills Authority

SSPs

Consult to the Minister on the SDA
and SDLA regulations (excl QCTO
regulations)

The Minister

National Skills Development
Strategy

Provide information on skills to:

Sector skills development plans

Liaise with SETAs on the

National Skills Development
Policy

The national skills development
strategy

Report to the Minister on NSDS
Implementation

Assist in the formulation of:

Each sector of the economy

NSD Strategy and
Implementation Guidelines

SDA and SDLA regulations

South Africa as a whole

Labour market skills needs research
for:

NSD Policy

Advise the Minister on the:

Department

Skills Development Act

NSA, Department and Director-General Functions Framework

1.7 Organisational structure

The Board of the NSA is its main decision-making body while the Executive Committee takes decisions in the periods
between Board meetings. There are four sub-committees that deal with specific matters and make recommendations
to the Executive Committee and the Board. The day-to-day administration is implemented by a Secretariat based in
Pretoria.
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NSA ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT AND SECRETARIAT REPORTING LINES

Section 8 (2) of the SDA ((1998, and as amended) states that, subject to the laws governing the Public Service,
the Director-General must –
(a) Appoint a person to be the executive officer of the NSA who will, upon such appointment, be in the employ of
the Public Service.

(b) Provide the Authority with the personnel and financial resources that the Minister considers necessary for the
performance of its functions.

1.7.1 NSA Secretariat
The Secretariat consisted of nine people during the year under review.

Table 1: Composition of the NSA Secretariat and salary bands
Position

Name

Salary band

Director

Dr T Mashongoane

Level 13 (R898 743.00 – R1 058 691.00)

Deputy Director

Ms S Mangubewa

Level 12 (R726 276.00 – R 855 516.00)

Assistant Director

Sibongile Mashao (vacated February 2016) Level 9 (R311 784.00 – R376 626.00)

Personal Assistant

Ms W Manell

Level 7 (R211 194.00 – R248 781.00)

Senior Administrative Clerk Mr P Tsambo

Level 6

(R171 069.00 – R201 507.00)

Senior Administrative Clerk Mr N Kgori

Level 6

(R171 069.00 – R201 507.00)

Senior Administrative Clerk Ms A Mabasa

Level 6

(R171 069.00 – R201 507.00)

Note: Salary bands and benefits are structured according to remuneration policies of the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA).

There were no appointments and only one resignation during the year under review.
The Secretariat is divided into four business units: Administration; Policy and Research; Skills System Performance
M&E; and Skills Development Advocacy and Stakeholder Capacity Building.

Table 2: Business units in the Secretariat
Business Units

Objectives/Kpas

Administration

Business support services (Office of the Director) (e.g. strategic positioning, structural
positioning, organisation structure development, business performance management,
organisation culture development, corporate communication/branding).
Corporate governance support services (e.g. risk management, legal services, internal
audit, compliance management, secretariat).
Resource management.
Human resource management support.
Financial and fund management support.
ICT management.
Information/knowledge management.

Policy and research

Policy instrument research.
Policy instrument development support.

Skills system performance
M&E

Skills development strategy implementation information.

Skills development
advocacy and stakeholder
capacity building

Skills development advocacy.

SETA performance information.
Partnership development (including social dialogue, stakeholder capacity development).
Stakeholder relations management.
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1.8 Funding model
The DHET funds the work of the NSA with voted funds. This funding caters for expenses in terms of administration, goods
and services, as well as NSA committee members’ expenses for travel and subsistence, seating fees and transportation.
The voted funds are managed by the chief financial officer of the DHET.
NSA projects are funded by the DHET through an allocation from the NSF. Given the lack of capacity of the NSA
Secretariat, the funds allocated from the NSF are managed through a fund management company, namely Nexia SAB&T.

1.9 Material issues
Material issues are issues that could potentially impact on the ability of the NSA to deliver against its mandate and
strategic goals. The Board and management of the NSA identified opportunities, challenges and risks. More detail on
risk management is provided in Part 3 of this report.

Table 3: Material issues that impact on the NSA’s ability to deliver against its mandate
Material issue

Risk and potential impact

Managing the risk

Compliance with legislative
framework

Failure to comply with legislative
framework could result in fraud.

NSA ensures compliance and good
governance through its organisational
structure.

Delivering on NSA mandates

Failure to deliver on NSA mandates
would mean a) SETAs’ performance
would not be evaluated, which could
lead to skills shortages and a skills
crisis in the country. b) Minister of HET
would have difficulty in fulfilling his
duties.

NSA compiled a comprehensive list of
performance indicators.

Producing quality research to
inform recommendations to
Minister

Misallocation of financial resources
as a result of a lack of a credible
institutional mechanism for skills
planning.

The four NSA sub-committees ensure
that the NSA can deliver on its
recommendations mandate.

Ability to attract and retain
appropriate skills to serve in the
Secretariat, executive committee
and standing committees.

The NSA would not have the requisite
skills, knowledge, competence,
experience or intellectual capital to
deliver on its mandate.

We rely on our Secretariat’s knowledge
and training to fulfil our mandate. Board
and executive appointments were
made for a five-year term that ensures
continuity.
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Part 2
Performance Information

2.1 Performance overview
The Director is the designated executive representative for the development of the NSA’s performance information
and for the assessments made. It is also the Director’s responsibility to ensure that the correct internal processes and
procedures have been followed in developing the information contained to ensure transparent, honest and accurate
representation of the performance information. In my opinion, the Annual Report adequately reflects the operations,
performance information, human resource information and the financial overview of the NSA for the period 1 March 2015
to 31 March 2016.
The third term of office of the NSA lapsed in June 2014, and the fourth term Board commenced nine months later, in
March 2016. The Board held their inaugural meeting on 29 and 30 April 2015. Given the anticipated backlog, the Board
deliberated on the following pressing issues, requiring advice on their commencement and focused on the delivery of
these key issues:
•

Review of the NSA strategic focus areas.

•

Update on the Service Level Agreement of the SETAs as well as their performance.

•

Sector skills plans (general undertakings – Minister and Chairperson’s meetings).

•

Update on the work of the HRDC.

•

Development of the NSDS and SETA landscape process.

•

Governance and performance of the SETAs including appointments of chairpersons.

•

SETA grant regulations Labour Court judgement.

Table 4: Delivery against performance objectives
Achievements
•

Profiling the NSA through its re•
launch. Held a press briefing with
media houses to re-launch the
NSA and conducted interviews
with the media.

•

Developed a marketing and
communications strategy
to profile the National Skills
Development Awards.

•

Applications for the National
Skills Awards were open
to SETAs, nationaland
provincial departments, StateOwned Enterprises (SoEs),
municipalities, companies,
SMMEs and large companies,
CBOs and NGOs, public and
pivate education and training
institutions.

•

Began delivery against the new
M&E role.
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Different perceptions of the role
of NSA.

Opportunities for 2016/2017
•

Advocacy of the NSA’s role.

•

Branding of the NSA’s role.

•

Communication on the NSA’s
role.

Achievements

Challenges

Opportunities for 2016/2017

•

NSA re-launch to position the
organisation’s role.

•

Perception of NSA duplicating
institutions.

•

Communication of the purpose of
capacity building centre.

•

Developed and began to
implement a M&E Framework in
terms of the WP-PSETincluding
the development of the business
case.

•

•

Develop a post-school education
and training system, with specific
focus on rural development and
SoEs, because of resourcing.

•

Collaborated with Swiss
organisation SACCI to do a study
on the destination of the NCV
students from TVETs.

Resourcing and its impact on
coordination and conducting
of research on several studies,
including developing a postschool education and training
system, with specific focus on
rural development and SoEs,
because of resourcing.

•

Conducted a second study to
develop a data collection tool.

•

None relating to reaching rural
and remote areas.

•

Reaching rural and remote areas. •

Expand all SETA participation to
rural and remote areas to drive
inclusive participation.

•

Create awareness of business
enterprise opportunities to benefit
communities and the vulnerable.

•

Developed terms of reference
and commissioned a feasibility
study to explore the possibility
of setting up a virtual skills
development and training centre
in collaboration with the ILO.

•

The NSA only has capacity to do
one study, because of resourcing
challenges.

•

Improve resourcing capacity with
the approval of the DHET.

•

Building capacity for skills
development system.

•

Insufficient administrative
capacity and human resources.

•

•

Personnel limitations affecting
reporting processes, subsequent
decision-making processes and
overall progress.

Improve personnel support,
including secretarial, technical
and logistical support.

•

None relating to stakeholder
relations capacity.

•

Limited skills in stakeholder
•
relations capacity, currently only
have a stakeholder administrator.

Employ a technical stakeholder
manager.

•

Appointment of a fund manager,
Nexia SAB&T, to assist in the
administration of NSA funds to
ease the burden of conflicting
procurement processes with the
DHET.

•

Procurement processes and
conflict in following DHET
processes and balancing
department’s needs and Board
mandate.

Review conflicting procurement
processes with the DHET.

•
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Achievements

Challenges

•

•

Identified limitations presented
by some of the programmes
provided by the SETAs that are
restricting participation of people
with disabilities.

Opportunities for 2016/2017

Did not meet targets set on
•
addressing the skills gap
regarding people with disabilities.

Create more openings to allow
for inclusive participation to meet
our transformative goals

•

Review programmes across all
occupations and programmes to
ensure inclusivity.

•

Reviewed the skills development
legislative framework to support
integration of education and
training and national government,
inclusive of the NSF Framework.

•

Developed terms of reference
regarding the M&E function of
the NSA Framework.

•

Successfully held public hearings •
which also served to profile
the NSDS as well as position
the national skills development
framework

There is very limited
understanding of the goals,
objectives, challenges and
successes of skills development
with stakeholders outside of
the DHET/SETA stakeholder
environment.

•

Stakeholder engagement
meetings with stakeholders
outside of the DHET/SETA.

•

The NSA collaborated with the
SASCE, and the UJ to host the
Africa WIL Conference.

•

National Skills Development
Awards were postponed thereby
delaying profiling opportunities.

•

Profile the NSA and NSDS
III through the National Skills
Development Awards.

•

Conducted one workshop on
the promotion ofWIL, where
300 delegates across the PSET
spectrum were in attendance.

•

Conducted a six-day training
session for the NSA member,
NSA resource and skills person.

•

Advised the Minister that
whatever decision is taken,
considerations must be
made of the whole education
spectrum from early childhood
development (ECD), to
primary and secondary school
learning systems, and not only
concentrate on the university
learners.

•

“Fees must fall” protests and
disruptions.

•

To be determined by the Minister.
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Achievements

Challenges

Opportunities for 2016/2017

•

Coordinated consultation
processes on the review of the
NSDS III with stakeholders and
the PSDFs to provide advice to
the Minister on the NSDS III.

•

•

•

Held round table discussions
with key stakeholders and expert
bodies.

Inability to complete and sign
off the SETA strategy beyond
2018 will have a huge impact in
the administration and running
of the SETAs, as it may call for
the Minister to further extend
the NSDF SETAs and re-license
the SETAs, and this may pose
several issues, including the
financial burden and impact on
legislative processes.

Sign off the SETA landscape–
beyond-2018 strategy and the
NSDS III.

Furthermore, the NSA focused on conducting research in order to advise the Minister on the following key areas of its
deliverables:
•

Advice on the 2012 SETA grant regulations.

•

Advice on the NSDS III implementation report and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018.

•

Advice on SETA Councils.

•

Advice on the development of an integrated workplace policy.

2.1.1 Advice on the 2012 SETA grant regulations
The NSA supported the Minister on the revised SETA grant regulation. However, concerns remain on the issue of
constituency representation vs fiduciary responsibility of the Board, particularly on the SETA grant regulations. The
advice to the Minister captured process and substance issues to address these.
Important to note regarding the SETA grant regulation is the pending suspension of the SETA grant regulation court
ruling on the suspension of grants until end March 2016, on case number JR1110/13 – SETA grant regulations. Given
the extensive impact of the court ruling on the NSA in terms of skills development system-wide arrangements, at a
meeting with the Minister on 11 September 2016 the NSA resolved to convene a special meeting to formulate advice
to the Minister to ensure that the SETA grant regulation does not disrupt the system and that the economy is supported
with the requisite skills.

2.1.2 Advice on the NSDS III implementation report and the SETA landscape
The NSA successfully convened provincial public hearings aimed at informing NSA advice to the Minister regarding the
NSDS and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018 proposal, and provided the NSA and its constituencies with the opportunity
to consult and engage on matters that will ultimately inform the vision of the NSDS and SETA landscape within the
context of an integrated and differentiated post school education and training system beyond 2018.
The public hearings were hosted in partnership with the PSDFs across nine provinces, to ensure the mobilisation of
business, government, community and labour to take full ownership of the NSDS (NSDS) and SETA landscape. The
hearings aimed to:
•

solicit recommendations on the NSDS and SETA landscape-beyond2018.

•

update the provinces on PSET-related policy matters, and to understand the challenges facing each province with
respect to the post- school education and training needs.

•

monitor progress on the implementation of the NSDS III.
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To invite attendees and create awareness of the public hearings, the NSA issued a government notice on 10 November
2015 and published the public hearings on the NSA website:
http//: www.nationalskillsauthority.org.za
Stakeholders from quality councils, SETAs, government, business, labour, education and training providers, community
constituencies, research institutions, professional bodies and the general public attended the public hearings, and the
PSDFs submitted written inputs to the DHET.
The NSA concluded the consultation process with a round table discussion aimed at playing a special role in allocating
an open platform of directly engaging views from specialised skills development bodies or organisations in a robust
manner.

2.1.3 Public hearings
The public hearings were held in the following provinces, and ran from 09h00 – 15h00 on the scheduled dates and times
outlined below.

Table 5: Public hearing schedule to inform the vision of the NSDS and SETA landscape
Province

Date

Venue

Gauteng

24 February 2016

Turffontein Racecourse

Eastern Cape

25 February 2016

East London City Hall

Western Cape

26 February 2016

Cape Town ICC

North West

29 February 2016

Mmabatho Convention Centre

Mpumalanga

03 March 2016

Ingwenyama Lodge, Nelspruit

Northern Cape

07 March 2016

Horse Shoe Inn, Kimberley

Free State

11 March 2016

Protea Hotel, Bloemfontein

KwaZulu-Natal

14 March 2016

Imbizo Conference Centre Sibaya Casino, Durban

Limpopo

16 March 2016

Polokwane Royal Hotel

The NSA submitted the NSDS and implementation report recommendations and the SETA landscape-beyond-2018
strategy to the Minister. The documents are currently under review by the Minister.

2.1.4 Advice on the NSDS III
Following the public hearings and consultations for the development of the NSDS III, the NSA made the following
recommendations to the Minister on the strategy:
Retain the NSDS III for a further period with only limited changes where necessary, such as inclusion of the “green skills”
agenda and related capacity building that will be required, to ensure minimal disruptions to the work of the SETAs with
regard to strategy. This recommendation was made as constant changes to strategies are disruptive to the SETAs and
to the stakeholders in the system. This approach was recommended to ensure that the strategy stabilises within the
framework of the SETAs and gains real traction for its effective implementation.
The NSA advised that great investment should be made in research to inform the skills development strategies, where
research should be conducted on current successful pilot projects and best practice interventions in South Africa,
showcasing them for possible inclusion in future strategies by taking them to scale. Research should also be commissioned
to inform future strategies that take cognisance of the policies of other developing countries in a comparable context,
such as Brazil, that seem able to tackle many similar skills development challenges with considerable energy, focus and
efficiency in terms of successful outcomes and impact. A coherent qualitative and quantitative, and widely understood,
M&E system with a focus on impact should be undertaken, to enable the effective M&E of the SETAs and provide an
understanding of specific M&E indicators.
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Recommendations were made for a high-level communication and advocacy campaign to communicate key issues in
simplified form on the goals of the NSDS III and the commitments contained in the accords, as well as the benefits to be
derived for the country from successful implementation. Outside of the DHET/SETA stakeholder environment, there is
very limited understanding of the goals, objectives, challenges and successes of skills development. Recommendations
were also made that in order to enable the success of the NSDS III, focus should be placed on the delivery of the “green
skills” agenda.
Of importance is that the coordination of skills development initiatives at policy and systems levels should be underpinned
by strong and integrated support structures with the capacity to make a fundamental difference to successful skills
development implementation. This is in the national interest to ensure future growth, prosperity and social inclusion in
South Africa.

2.1.5 Advice on the SETA landscape-beyond-2018
The NSA is pleased to report that we have concluded consultation and provided initial advice to the Minister of Higher
Education and Training on the SETA landscape-beyond-2018 strategy. Four options were presented to the Minister in
terms of the formation of the SETAs.
The first option recommends a minimal change approach – with efforts in strengthening the performance of the SETAs
and in reviewing why the SETAs have continued to experience problems. Although the option has the advantage of
causing minimal disruption to current service delivery, it does not address persistent challenges that the SETAs have
continued to face over the years, and therefore does not present a viable option to address those challenges.
The second option proposes a clustering option. This option is in line with the White Paper that identified the possibility
of a significant restricting of the skills system, with a further reduction in the numbers of SETAs over the medium to long
term, and taking a collaborative approach to skills training along the supply chain.
The second option presents a number of challenges as it compounds the problems faced by the SETAs and does not
necessarily address them. The option can cause major disruption to service delivery, given that previous experience
shows that mergers of institutions lead to major interruptions (when staffing and systems are brought together under a
single roof). By creating bigger sectoral bodies, the distance between the management of the SETAs and the companies
they serve will increase; and this may slow service delivery even further, rather than achieve the desired outcome to
accelerate service delivery.
The third option proposes the establishment of a National Skills Council. This option came about as a result of the
strategy taken by the Human Resource Advancement Council. It proposes the centralisation of the skills system strategy;
centralisation of funding and the introduction of shared services. However, this approach does not clearly articulate how
such a National Skills Council would interact with the remainder of the PSET system. It presents further problems with
the list of functions allocated to the National Skills Council as, in the main, the White Paper envisages the function to be
performed by some other agency.
The fourth option, which the NSA recommended as the preferred approach, proposes the integration of the SETAs into
the PSET system. This approach proposes that the scope and boards of the SETA Advisory Boards (SETAB) remain
the same, while the State (the DHET) takes a stronger role, especially in sector skills plans. In this approach, the
DHET would manage skills planning and other functions of the SETAs, including occupational teams, SETAB cluster
management and NSF.
The NSA proposes that 80% of SETA discretionary grants should be disbursed by the NSF, with advice from SETABs,
taking national priorities into account. In turn, government departments would prepare training plans in line with
methodologies and templates set nationally to permit response. This will ensure that some of the larger SETAs play a
bigger role in prioritising national skills needs, especially in areas where there is a scarcity of skills.
The NSA advice is currently with the Minister of Higher Education and Training. The DHET, together with other key role
players and stakeholders, has started consolidating and analysing the advice. The process should be completed by
March 2017, and will be reported upon in the next financial year.
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2.1.6 Advice on the development of an integrated WIL policy
The NSA hosted a two-day integrated workplace learning workshop, where nearly 500 people from universities, TVETs,
and public and private sector businesses participated in the development of a WIL policy. The policy has been developed
and handed over to the DHET. The policy provides strategic advice to the Minister on work integration, recommending
that there be regulation of work-integrated learning. The recommendations also look into curricula and whether they are
applicable to workplace needs.

2.1.7 Advice on SETA Councils
The matter of appointment of the boards of the SETAs for the extended NSDS III two-year period was discussed in the
NSA Executive Committee (EXCO) meeting held on 20 October 2015 and no firm recommendation was put forward. The
EXCO noted some of the possible implications relating to the processes leading to the appointment of the boards for
the extended NSDS III period. The concerns relating to continuity of governance and consistency in performance were
also raised by the SETAs at an earlier meeting of the NSA-SETAs. The NSA considered the legal opinion and advised
the Minister to reappoint or extend the term of the Boards in order to ensure stability and proper planning for the next
financial year.

2.2 Overview of business unit performance
As the third term of office lapsed in June 2015, and the fourth term Board only took office nine months later, several
issues had to be prioritised. It is important to note that the fourth term Board initially had to deal with the backlog from the
nine months between the lapse and inception period, and address the work backlog on commencement of office. While
a number of milestone achievements were made during the year, a number of targets were not met, mainly as a result
of resourcing challenges and the backlog.
Below is an outline of the NSA’s performance per business unit.

2.2.1 Business Unit 1: Administration
The purpose of this business unit is to provide support services towards achieving internal business capacity within the
NSA. In support of this goal, the following objectives are pursued:
•

To provide corporate governance support services to the Board.

•

To provide business process support services.

•

To provide resource management support services.

The following sub-business units for this programme are:
•

Business support services (e.g. strategic positioning, structural positioning, organisation structure development,
business performance management, organisation culture development, corporate communication/branding).

•

Corporate governance support services (e.g. risk management, legal services, internal audit, compliance
management, Secretariat).

•

Financial and fund management support (including ICT management support, supply chain).

•

Human resource management support.
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The key strategies relating to Business Unit 1: Administration are outlined below, together with the results overview.

Table 6: Achievements of Business Unit 1: Administration
SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 1.1: BUSINESS SUPPORT SERVICES
Business unit performance Reporting
Annual target
indicator
period
2015/16

Actual
performance

Comments/
description

1.1

•

1.2

•

1.3

1.4

Consolidated
Strategic
and Annual
Performance Plan
provided within
prescribed time.
Organisation
structure review.

Annually

1

1

Achieved.

Annually

1

1

•

NSA image rating
report produced.

Bi-annually

1

0

•

A corporate
communication
service report
produced.

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved and a number
of gaps within the
structure have been
identified.
Not achieved, target
will be put into effect
at the National Skills
Development Awards in
the new financial year.
Achieved.

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 1.2: GOVERNANCE SUPPORT SERVICES
1.5

•

1.6

•

1.7

•

1.8

•

1.9

•

1.10

•

1.11

•

Policy/legislation
Annually
compliance report
(n).
Financial reports
Quarterly
produced (n).
Board meetings (n). Quarterly

1

1

Achieved.

4

4

Achieved.

4

4

Achieved.

Board subcommittee meetings
(n).
Annual report
produced (n).
Board performance
review report
produced (n).
Risk management
report produced (n).

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.

Annually

1

1

Achieved.

Annually

1

0

Not achieved.

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.
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Members of the Policy and Research Committee, from left: Ms C Matlakala, Mr Z Khuzwayo, Mr M Ratshivhanda and Mr J Samuels
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SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 1.3: FINANCIAL AND FUND MANAGEMENT SUPPORT
Business unit performance Reporting
Annual target Actual
indicator
period
2015/16
performance
1.12

•

Comments/
description

1.13

•

1.14

•

1.15

•

1.16

•

Expenditure reports
produced (n).
Creditor payment
age-analysis report
produced (n).
Annual financial
report produced (n).
Information
/ knowledge
management report
produced (n).
Web site updates
frequency (n).

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.

Annually

1

1

Achieved.

Annually

1

0

Not achieved as this
service is centralised
within the DHET.

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.

Quarterly

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 1.4: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SUPPORT
1.17

•

Approved positions
filled (%).

1.18

•

1.19

•

Performance review Quarterly
frequency (n).
Expenditure reports Quarterly
produced (n).

100

4

Not
achieved, Target to be reviewed,
target reviewed
as the NSA had set a
very high target that
could not be achieved
in one year. This
deliverable is a work
in progress and will be
reviewed in the new
financial year.
4
Achieved.

4

4

Achieved.

2.2.2 Business Unit 2: Policy and Research
The purpose of this business unit is to provide national skills development policy instruments advice. In support of this
goal the following objectives are pursued:
•

To provide policy instrument research.

•

To provide policy instrument development support.

Annual Report 2015-2016

31

The following achievements we made by the Policy and Research Unit against its performance objectives.

Table 7: Achievements of Business Unit 2: Policy and Research
SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 2.1: POLICY INSTRUMENT RESEARCH
Business unit performance
Reporting
Annual target
indicator
period
2015/16

Actual
performance

Comments/
description

2.1

2

Achieved. The first
research is a study
on the destination of
the NC (V) students
from TVETs. The
second research is
a study to develop a
data collection tool.

•

Research reports
produced (n).

Annually

2

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 2.2: POLICY INSTRUMENT DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT
2.2

•

Policy instrument
development
reports produced
(n).

Annually

1

1

Achieved.

2.3

•

Policy instrument
development
advisory reports
produced (n).

Quarterly

4

4

Achieved.

2.2.3 Business Unit 3: Skills System Performance M&E
The purpose of this business unit is to provide national skills development system performance information through
M&E. In support of this goal, the following objectives are pursued:
•

Skills development strategy implementation information.

•

SETA performance information.
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M&E Committee members, from left: Mr O Sipuka, Ms S Mangubewa, Mr BKM Nhlapo, Ms B Hendricks and Mr J Maqhekeni

Table 8: Achievements of Business Unit 3: Skills System Performance M&E
SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 3.1: SKILLS DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION INFORMATION
Business unit performance
Reporting
Annual target Actual
Comments/
indicator
period
2015/16
performance
description
3.1

•

Skills development
strategy
implementation
report produced
(n).

Annually

1

1

Achieved.
Developed
the NSDS III
Implementation
Impact Report.

2

Achieved.

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 2.2: SETA PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
3.2

•

SETA performance
review report
produced (n).

Annually

2

Annual Report 2015-2016

33

2.2.4 Business Unit 4: Skills Development Advocacy and Stakeholder Capacity
The purpose of this business unit is to promote skills development and build stakeholder capacity. In support of this goal,
the following objectives are pursued:
•

Skills development advocacy.

•

Partnership development (including stakeholder capacity development).

•

Stakeholder relations management.

Skills development promotion advocacy and marketing team members, from left: Mr J Matsho, Ms C Reynders, Mr P Mongalo,
Mr BKM Nhlapo.
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Table 9: Achievements of Business Unit 4: Skills Development Advocacy and Stakeholder Capacity
SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 4.1: SKILLS DEVELOPMENT ADVOCACY
Business unit performance
Reporting
Annual target Actual
indicator
period
2015/16
performance

Comments /
description

4.1

Achieved.

•

Skills development
advocacy report
produced (n).

Quarterly

4

4

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 4.2: PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING SOCIAL DIALOGUE,
STAKEHOLDER CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT)
4.2

•

Partnership report
produced (n).

Annually

2

2

Achieved.

4.3

•

Key stakeholder
engagement
report produced
(n) (SETAs and
PSDFs).

Annually

2

2

Achieved.

SUB-BUSINESS UNIT 4.3: STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS MANAGEMENT
4.4

•

Stakeholder
Annually
relations
management report
produced (n).

1

1

Achieved.

Note: Out of a total of 28 targets set for the year, the NSA achieved 24 of the targets, realising 87.5% of its goals.
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Part 3
Governance Information

3.1 Governance and accountability
The NSA is committed to good governance practices in line with the requirements of the Public Finance Management
Act (PFMA) (Act 1 of 1999, as amended in 2010). The PFMA is in place “to regulate financial management in the
national government and provincial governments; to ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of those
governments are managed efficiently and effectively; to provide for the responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial
management in those governments; and to provide for matters connected therewith.”
The NSA endeavours to ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities are managed efficiently and effectively;
to facilitate that all the responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial management are met, as well as matters
connected with financial management. The NSA achieves this by:
•

Following stringent internal procurement processes.

•

Processing of invitations for bids/requests for quotations and requests for proposals .

•

Financial management through independent accounting and auditing firm Nexia SAB&T.

•

Service level agreements in partnership with independent accounting and auditing firm Nexia SAB&T to ensure
transparency and accountability at all times.

•

Declaration of any conflict of interest for all staff, board members, board sub-committees and suppliers.

•

Internal code of conduct and risk register.

The Board is the highest governing structure; the Board retains full and effective control over the NSA and ensures that
we deliver on our mandate.

3.1.1. The NSA Board

Front - left to right: Dr T Mashongoane, Mr P Mongalo, Ms C Reynders, Mr T Tshefuta, Dr BE Nzimande, Mr E Majadibodu, Ms C Matlakala,
Ms S Mangubewa, Mr BKM Nhlapo.
Back - left to Right: Mr Z Khuzwayo, Ms S Hendricks, Mr M Ally, Mr M Ratshivhanda, Ms S Carthy, Mr O Sipuka, Mr S Ndlovu, Mr J
Maqhekeni, Ms L Nare, Mr E De Klerk, Mr P Mokoena, Mr J Samuels, Mr J Matsho, Ms T Futshane, Mr M Macikama, Mr M Lumka, Mr E
Mashabane, Ms M Erra, Mr N Mabuza.
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3.2 The NSA structure
3.2.1 The NSA Board
The new NSA Board was appointed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in March 2015 for the period 2015
to 2020 or pending legislative changes. There are 30 members in total, with 17 being first-time members and 12 being
reappointed. The NSA Board held its inaugural meeting on 29 and 30 April 2015 and its structure is as follows:
•

NSA Chairperson.

•

Members:
•

Five representing the State (Department of Trade and Industry, DPSA, DHET, Economic Development Department
and Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs).

•

Five representing business (Business Unity South Africa and the Black Business Council).

•

Five representing organised labour (the Congress of South African Trade Unions, the Federation of Unions of
South Africa and the National Council of Trade Unions).

•

Five representing community (Women’s National Coalition, youth, civic and DPSA).

•

Four representing education and skills development providers.

•

Five ministerial discretionary appointments (The South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA), the Quality
Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO), employment services and skills experts).

Table 10: Members of the NSA Board
Name

Constituency

Ms Lulama Nare

Chairperson from March 2015

Mr Thulani Tshefuta

Community

Ms Jocelyn Vass

State

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State

Mr Pule Mokoena

Business

Ms Conti Matlakala

Community

Mr David Diale

State

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda

State

Ms Joyce Mashabela

State

Mr Percy Mongalo

Business

Mr Jim Matsho

Business

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State

Mr Nicolus Maziya

Labour

Mr Dumisani Mthalane

Community

Ms Cynthia Reynders

Education and Skills Development Providers

Mr Joe Samuels

SAQA

Mr Eubert Mashabane

State

Mr Dumisani Mngadi

State

Ms Stella Carthy

Business

Mr Eddie de Klerk

Labour

Mr Sibhanana Ndlovu

Education and Skills Development Providers
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Name

Constituency

Ms Nazrene Mannie

Employment services

Mr Bhabhali Ka Maphikela Nhlapo

Labour

Ms Thembisa Futshane

State

Mr Mustak Ally

Business

Mr Joseph Maqhekeni

Labour

Mr Olwethu Siphuka

Community

Ms Shahieda Hendricks

Education and Skills Development Providers

Mr Edward Majadibodu

Chairperson until September 2015

Mr Maliviwe Lumka

State

Ms Joyce Mashabela

QCTO

Mr Joe Samuels

SAQA

The total demographic profile of the NSA Board was as follows:
18 Black males

Five Black females

One White male

Two White females

Two Coloured males

One Coloured female

One Indian male

Two Indian females

0 PWDs

3.2.2 The NSA Executive Committee
The NSA Executive Committee was appointed in March 2015 and its six members are expected to serve until 2020.
The Executive Committee makes decisions when the Board is not available, particularly in the periods between Board
meetings.

From left: Mr Z Khuzwayo(alternate member state), Mr T Tshefuta, Mr BKM Nhlapo, Ms S Mangubewa, Mr Majadibodu, Mr P Mongalo and Dr T
Mashongoane.
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Table 11: Members of the NSA Executive Committee
Position

Member

Constituency

Chairperson

Ms Lulama Nare

Chairperson

Deputy Chairperson

Mr Thulani Tshefuta

Community

Deputy Chairperson

Mr Percy Mongalo

Organised Business

Deputy Chairperson

Mr Bhabhali Ka Maphikela Nhlapo

Organised Labour

Deputy Chairperson

Ms. Jocelyn Vass

State

Deputy Chairperson

Ms Cynthia Reynders

Education and Skills Development
Providers

Additional member

Ms Nazrene Mannie

Employment Services

3.2.3 The NSA Sub-committees and responsibilities
The NSA is structured into four Subcommittees that deal with specific matters and make recommendations to the Exco
and Board. The Sub-committees met four times during the year under review.
The Sub-committees are: Policy, Advice and Research; Skills Development Promotion, Advocacy and Marketing;
Capacity Building; and M&E. Each Sub-committee focuses on a specific stakeholder grouping and provides advice and
strategic input within the framework of its mandate and perspective.

Table 12: NSA Sub-committee members
Sub-committee

Policy, Advice and
Research

Skills Development
Promotion, Advocacy and
Marketing

40

Members

Constituency

Ms Jocelyn Vass (Chairperson)

State

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State

Mr Pule Mokoena

Business

Ms Conti Matlakala

Community

Mr David Diale

Education and Skills
Development Providers

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda

Employment Services

Ms Joyce Mashabela

QCTO

Mr Joe Samuels

SAQA

Mr Percy Mongalo (Chairperson)

Business

Mr Jim Matsho

Business

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State proxy

Mr Nicolus Maziya

Labour

Mr Dumisani Mthalane

Community

Ms Cynthia Reynders

Education and Skills
Development Providers
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Sub-committee

Capacity Building

M&E

Members

Constituency

Mr Thulani Tshefuta
(Chairperson)

Community

Ms Lulama Nare

Community

Mr Dumisani Mngadi

State

Ms Stella Carthy

Business

Mr Eddie de Klerk

Labour

Mr Sibhanana Ndlovu

Education and Skills Development Providers

Ms Nazrene Mannie

Employment Services

Mr Eubert Mashabane

Skills expert

Mr Bhabhali Ka Maphikela
Nhlapo (Chairperson)

Labour

Ms Thembisa Futshane

State

Mr Ally Mustak

Business

Mr Joseph Maqhekeni

Labour

Mr Olwethu Siphuka

Community

Ms Shahieda Hendricks

Education and Skills Development Providers

Mr M Lumka

Skills Expert

The new NSA Sub-committees’ terms of reference as at 10/6/2015
Policy, Advice & Research Sub-committee: areas of focus
SDA, policy and regulations revisions and amendments management.
SDA, policy and regulations compliance M&E.
Skills Development Levy Act Regulations consultation support.
Research, reporting and review.
SDA frameworks and comment.
TVET, community colleges and learning programmes M&E.
Skills development roleplayer linkages, relationships and collaboration facilitation (Quality Councils, NAMB).
Scarce and critical skills.
National Skills Development Policy liaison.
PSDF regulations including PSDF guidelines.

M&E Sub-committee: areas of focus
SETA landscape review.
NSDS M&E framework.
NSDS implementation progress.
SETA governance framework, administration and M&E.
SETA SLAs, strategic plans and performance score cards M&E.
NSDS implementation liaison.
Sector skills plan guidelines advice, M&E.
SETA grant regulations, programmes and M&E.
SETA national growth and development skills strategies contribution.
SETA roleplayer linkages, relationships and collaboration facilitation (industry/employers, TVET and QCs).
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M&E Sub-committee: areas of focus
SETA quarterly monitoring reports and annual reports.
Conduct investigations on the performance of SETAs.
SDA application matters investigation.

Capacity Building Sub-committee: areas of focus
NSF strategic framework including policy, criteria and regulations.
NSF funding regulations, programmes and M&E.
NSF priorities and oversight.
PSDF governance, SLAs, performance score cards and M&E.
NSF/PSDF national growth and development strategies contribution M&E.
NSF/PSDFs liaison and assistance (NSDS implementation).
NSF quarterly monitoring review and comment.
NSF annual report and financial statements approval process.
NSF NSA, SETA and provincial skills development initiatives projects management and M&E.
FET colleges, universities, post school system and other delivery partners alignment.
Capacity-building support.
Establishment of Turin-like centre.

Skills Development Promotion, Advocacy and Marketing Sub-committee: areas of focus
Marketing and communications.
Annual recognition awards for good practice in skills development strategy.
Skills conferences and workshops.
World Skills Competition.
Skills development best practice promotion.
RPL promotion and M&E.
Promotion of workplace experience, apprenticeship and internship programmes.
The NSA Board, Executive Committee and sub-committees’ meeting attendance and remuneration (excluding costs and
expenses for meetings) for the year under review are summarised in the table below.

Table 13: NSA Board, Executive Committee and Sub-committees meeting attendance and
remuneration
Name

Total number of
payments *

Members
remuneration ***

Total paid

Ms Lulama Nare

9

R3 784

R34 056.00

Mr Thulani Tshefuta

31

R3 312

R102 672.00

Ms Jocelyn Vass

State representative **

R0.00

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State representative**

R0.00

Mr Pule Mokoena

15

R2 296

R34 440.00

Ms Conti Matlakala

24

R2 296

R55 104.00

Mr David Diale

State representative**

R0.00

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda

State representative**

R0.00

Ms Joyce Mashabela

State representative**

R0.00

Mr Percy Mongalo
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R3 312

R129 168.00

Name

Total number of
payments *

Members
remuneration ***

Total paid

Mr Jim Matsho

30

R2 296

R68 880.00

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo

State representative**

Mr Nicolus Maziya

8

R2 296

R18 368.00

Mr Dumisani Mthalane

19

R2 296

R43 624.00

Ms Cynthia Reynders

15

R2 296

R34 440.00

Mr Joe Samuels

State representative**

R0.00

Mr Eubert Mashabane

State representative**

R0.00

Mr Dumisani Mngadi

State representative**

R0.00

Ms Stella Carthy

9

R2 296

R20 664.00

Mr Eddie de Klerk

11

R2 296

R25 256.00

Mr Sibhanana Ndlovu

State representative**

Ms Nazrene Mannie

15

R2 296

R34 440.00

Mr Bhabhali Ka Maphikela Nhlapo

35

R3 312

R115 920.00

Ms Thembisa Futshane

State representative**

Mr Mustak Ally

18

R2 296

R41 328.00

Mr Joseph Maqhekeni

23

R2 296

R52 808.00

Mr Olwethu Siphuka

13

R2 296

R29 848.00

Ms Shahieda Hendricks

8

R2 296

R18 368.00

Mr Edward Majadibodu

6

R3 784

R22 704.00

Mr Maliviwe Lumka

State representative**

R0.00

R0.00

R0.00

R0.00

*This is not the number of meetings, but rather the number of payments.
**State representatives do not claim for sitting fees.
***Board members are remunerated according to category B1 board remuneration of the National Treasury.

Remuneration rate
Board member

R 2 296 per meeting

Chairperson of Board

R 3 784 per meeting

Deputy Chairperson of Board

R 3 312 per meeting

3.3 Managing risk
The NSA is committed to the optimal management of risks associated with its functioning, environment and people. The
NSA Board has overall responsibility for strategic and operational risk management. As part of managing our risk, we
also define the material issues that can potentially impact on our ability to deliver against our mandate, the associated
risk and potential impact, and how the risks of these material issues are being managed. These are detailed on pages
56 and 57 of this report. During the year under review, the NSA was confronted with a number of risks as depicted in
the risk register.
To ensure the NSA’s effective delivery of its strategic business objectives, measures were put in place to manage
organisational risk across the four business units. Below is a schedule of risks and mitigation measures taken in the year
to effectively manage organisational risks.
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1

Root cause

Conflictingrela- Poor structural
tionships.
alignment
of the NSA
secretariat
and the NSA
board with the
DHET.

Risk Risk
no. description

Misalignment of
timelines in carrying
out the NSA mandate
(DHET and NSA
timelines).

NSA rendered
ineffective.

Possible legal
challenges.

Competing priorities
resulting.

Delay in
implementation of NSA
recommendations by
the Department.

Dual reporting lines (i.e.
DHET and NSA board).

Effect

5

II

Inherent Impact
5

IL
Inherent Likelihood

IL = Inherent Likelihood
CE = Control Effectiveness

25

New:
The structure
is reviewed in
line with the
new NSA role
of M&E.

Alignment
of the NSA
work to the
Department’s
work through
engagements
and planning.

IR Existing
(II x Controls
IL)

Inherent risk

II = Inherent Impact			
IR = Inherent Risk			
RR = Residual Risk

CE

RR Management Risk
(IR x Actions
owner/
CE)
Responsibility

0.65 16.25 Review and
Director:
implementation NSA
of the structural
alignment.

Perceived control
effectiveness

Table 14: Operational Risk Register: NSA (Financial year 2015/16)

Residual risk

44

31-Mar-16

Timeframe
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2

Reliance
on the
Departmental
resources,
systems and
processes
(delays in
approval
processes of
submissions
and requests).

Delays in
appointment
of the NSA.

Insufficient
staff capacity
to support
NSA.

Ineffective
Nonimplementation appointment
of NSA plans. of the
Executive
Officer (EO).

Delayed implementation
of plans resulting
in possible under
expenditure.

Non-compliance with
the legislation.

Delayed execution of
the NSA mandate.

Poor strategic
engagement at an EO
level.

Effect

4

Inherent Impact
4

IL
Inherent Likelihood

II

16

New:
Fund
management
agency
has been
appointed.

Operate
with limited
capacity and
prioritise
plans.

IR Existing
(II x Controls
IL)

Inherent risk

Root cause
CE

0.8

Perceived control
effectiveness

Risk Risk
no. description

12.8

The vacancy
of the EO and
additional
capacity are
still to be
reviewed in
line with the
new mandate.

New:
The structure
is still to be
reviewed and
new NSA to
be appointed
in March 2016
once the
review process
has been
finalised.

To include NSA
appointment in
the legislative
review
process.
Appointment
of the Fund
Management
Agency.

Motivate for
the review of
the structure.

Director:
NSA

RR Management Risk
(IR x Actions
owner/
CE)
Responsibility
Residual risk

31-Mar-16

Timeframe

Annual Report 2015-2016

Delayed NSA
decisionmaking.

Conflict
of interest
among
stakeholders.
3

4

____________________________________

Delayed implementation
of plans resulting
in possible under
expenditure.

Disagreements
amongst members.

Legal challenges and
contestations.

IL

Date:				____________________________________

Signature:			____________________________________

Designation:			____________________________________

Surname and Initials:		

CONFIRMATION OF RISK REGISTER

3

Inherent Impact

II
Inherent Likelihood

Effect

12

New:
Progress in
the review in
terms of the
constituency
appointment
and due for
finalization in
March 2016.

Prepare and
brief the
Chairperson
on the current
issues to
reduce
conflicts.

Code of
conduct
and the
Constitution.

IR Existing
(II x Controls
IL)

Inherent risk

Root cause
CE

0.65

Perceived control
effectiveness

Risk Risk
no. description

7.8

New:
In the process
of NSA code
of conduct and
the constitution
being reviewed
as per the SDA
timelines.

Review in
terms of the
constituency
appointment
(NSA
appointment
criteria).

Continuous
review of
the Code
of conduct
and the
Constitution.

Director:
NSA

RR Management Risk
(IR x Actions
owner/
CE)
Responsibility
Residual risk
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31-Mar-17

Timeframe

To ensure the NSA’s effective delivery of its strategic business objectives, measures were put in place to manage
organisational risk across the four business units. Below is a schedule of risks and mitigation measures taken in the year
to effectively manage organisational risks.

Table 15: Organisational risks and mitigation measures
BUSINESS UNIT 1 : ADMINISTRATION
KEY BUSINESS UNIT RISKS

MITIGATION ACTION

Financial constraints for NSA administration.

•

Risk has partly been mitigated by the fund manager.

•

Seek Minister’s approval on hiring of more staff.

Dual reporting of director.

•

Review legal processes of the NSA.

Unclear relationship between NSA Board and DHET.

•

Structural review required.

Governance related risks – insufficient capacity,
constituency focus, attendance challenges, long decision
lead-time.

•

Conduct Board skills audit.

•

Conduct Board development plan.

•

Conduct Board performance review plan.

•

Strong secretarial support required.

•

Align mandate.

•

Declaration of interest.

•

Focus on code of conduct.

•

Employ temporary personnel.

•

Temporary outsourcing of services to provide human
resources relief for the business unit.

Inadequate tools.

•

Identify tools/system requirements and procure
funds.

Duplication of mandates.

•

Collaborate with stakeholders.

•

Alignment of activities.

BUSINESS UNIT 2 : POLICY AND RESEARCH
Insufficient human resources.

BUSINESS UNIT 3: SKILLS SYSTEM PERFORMANCE M&E
Insufficient human resources.

•

Employ temporary personnel.

•

Temporary outsourcing of services to provide human
resources relief for the business unit.

•

Deploy required expertise on a service basis.

Insufficient tools/systems.

•

Identify tools/system requirements and initiate
procurement.

Lack of role clarity with regard to M&E activities.

•

Develop guidelines on the role of the NSA.

•

Finalise the NSA business case.

SETA’s perceiving NSA monitoring activities as “policing”. •
•

Position the NSA as an overarching, M&E entity on
national skills development system performance.
Position the NSA’s deliverables of a strategic
mandate on skills development.
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BUSINESS UNIT 4: SKILLS DEVELOPMENT ADVOCACY AND STAKEHOLDER CAPACITY
KEY BUSINESS UNIT RISKS

MITIGATION ACTION

Insufficient human resources.

•

Employ temporary personnel.

•

Temporary outsourcing of services to be used to
provide relief to the business unit.

•

Deploy required expertise on a service basis.

•

Advocacy of the role of the NSA.

•

Effective brand positioning of the NSA.

•

Strategic communication on the role and mandate of
the NSA.

Perception of NSA duplicating institutions.

•

Communicate purpose of capacity building centre.

Insufficient communication/ICT infrastructure.

•

Identify communication/ICT infrastructure
requirements and initiate procurement process.

Different perceptions on the role of NSA.
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Part 4
Annual Financial Statements

4.1 Statement of responsibility for the Annual Financial Statements
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm that the Annual Financial Statements of the NSA have been approved.
The accounting authority and the director of the NSA are responsible for establishing and implementing a system of
internal control to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the annual financial statements.
Through the DHET, external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
All information contained in this report can also be found on our website.

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Director: NSA
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4.2 Report of the accounting authority
We, as the Board of the NSA, have applied our collective mind to the preparation and presentation of this Annual Report.
It is our view as the Board that the Annual Report provides insights into the NSA’s organisational strategy and how
this relates to the organisation’s ability to create value and provide strategic inputs into the national skills development
framework. The report provides a holistic view of the combination, interrelatedness and dependencies between the
factors that affect the NSA’s ability to deliver on its mandate. All material matters, both positive and negative, have been
included in the report in a balanced manner that reflects the actual overall performance of the organisation.
To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, it is our considered opinion
that the report provides a fair representation of the NSA’s financial and non-financial performance for the year ending
31 March 2016, and that the report reflects reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates that comply with the
PFMA (1999, as amended in 2010).
We have confidence in the delivery of this report, as the NSA’s systems and internal controls include a clear and
systematic delegation of responsibilities, and effective accounting systems in line with the DHET policies and National
Treasury regulations.
Based on the information provided in this report, the Board is confident that relevant internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the financial records, information and explanations given by management may be relied upon for the
preparation of the Annual Financial Statements.
It is our opinion as the accounting authority that the NSA, having met its budgetary requirements, will continue as a going
concern for the next financial year, and following the same trail, will continue to do so in the future.

4.3 Remuneration
The NSA Director and staff are full-time employees. They are remunerated in line with the approved salary bands
for the period and as aligned to the DPSA remuneration policy. Details of their remuneration appear in Table 1. In terms
of the HR policy, all employees are required to have a performance agreement as well as a personal development plan
for the financial year against which performance is assessed quarterly.
The NSA’s board members are remunerated for attending Board and subcommittee meetings in accordance with the
National Treasury Guidelines Level B1. The amount paid to each board member for meeting attendance appears in
the report in Table 16: NSA Board, Executive Committee and Subcommittees meeting attendance and remuneration.
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CONS/PROF:
BUSINESS&ADVISORY SERV

EXT COMP SERV:SYSTEM
ADVISER

COMPUTER SERVICES

COM:CELL CONTRACT
(SUBSCR&CALLS)
COM:POST/STAMP/FRANK
MACH
COM:TELEPHONE
INSTALLATION *
COM:TEL/FAX/
TELEGRAP&TELEX

875

875

April
15

May 15

391 000

138 632 160 760

8 083

7 419

50 000 13 258 10 726

10 283

Jul 15

2 200

2 200

7 419

30

30

Jun 15

2 200

20 000

70 000 15 458 12 926

56 000

COMMUNICATION

56 000

CATERING

R’000

2015/16
Budget
allocation

1 488 000

CATERING: DEPARTML
ACTIVITIES

EQP<R5000:AUDIO VISUAL
EQUIPMENT
C/EQP<R5000:COM SYSDESKTOP
EQP<R5000:OFFICE
FURNITURE

EQP<R5000:LAPTOP BAGS

ASSETS<R5000

BANK CHARG&CARD FS
COMM BANK
MANAGEMENT/HANDLING
FEES

REGISTRATION FEES

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES :
PAYMENT

ADVERT:MARKETING

ADVERT:GIFTS &
PROMOTIONAL ITEM

ADVERTISEMENTS

NSA Secretariat

Programme 5:Skills
Development

19 328

6 792

1 100

7 892

Aug 15

4 023

1 009

5 032

Oct 15

19 862 103 768

1 009

1 009

4 227

4 227

Sep 15

89 175

7 191

1 009

8 200

2 000

2 000

Nov 15

EXPENDITURE PER MONTH

8 842

8 842

7 050

7 050

Jan 16

60 218

16 742

3 029

19 771

10 240

10 240

Feb 16

R’000

80 475 141 704

4 000

1 009

5 009

Dec 15
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Mar 16

813 922

87 078

14 765

101 843

17 372

17 372

7 050

7 050

2 340

2 340

Total
Committed
expenditure expenditure

- 422 922

- 37 078

5 235

- 31 843

36 288

36 288

- 7 050

- 7 050

Budget
available
% on spent

REQUISITION
DETAILS
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P/P:COMMISION MUNICIPAL
SERV
P/P:CONTRACTD
MAINTNNCE PROP

P/P:CLEANING SERVICES

PROPERTY PAYMENTS

OWN&LEAS PROP
EXP:OPERATING LEASE

OPERATING LEASES

LEASES PAYMENTS

CONS : SP&OS:GOV
PRINTING
CONS : SP&OS:PRINTING
PAPR
CONS : SP&OS:PRINTING
CART
CONS : SP&OS :
STATIONERY

CONS : IT CONSMBLES

CONS HOUS SUP:
GROCERIES
CONS MAT&SUP: ELECTRIC
SUPPLIER
CONS MAT&SUP:
HARDWARE
CONS: HOUS SUP : LIN,
CRCKERY & CUTLRY

CONSUMABLES

AGENCY AND SPECIAL
SPECIAL SERVICES
A&S/O/S:PROFESSIONAL
STAFF
AGENCY&S/O
SER:RESEARCHER

CONTRCTRS:ARTISTS&PERFORMERS
CONTRCTRS:MAINT&REP OF
MACH&EQP
CONTRCTRS:GRAPHIC
DESIGNERS
CONTRCTRS:MAINT&REP OF
MACH&EQP
CONTRCTRS:PLANT
FLOWRS&OTHR DEC

CONTRACTORS

C/P: BUS&ADV SER: BOARD
MEMBER
C/P:L/STATE ATTNY:LEGAL
ADVICE

390

390

1 645

59

2 313

4 733

2 000

470

7 203

89 175

8 919

54

8 973

80 475 141 704

2 780

60 218

3 000

3 000

38 000

12 000

594

594

1 189

1 189

2 972

2 972

5 904

1 869

7 773

1 869

1 869

609

3 738

3 738

1 869

1 869

27

770

770

5 904

5 904

19 862 103 768

30 000

823

823

19 328

2 753

2 466

2 466

138 632 160 760

2 000

1 000

1 000

1 000

1 000

86 000

391 000

3 738

3 738

5 904

17 840

23 744

609

19 774

2 753

2 000

529
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25 718

813 922

98 915

98 915

3 000

3 000

- 5 904

- 17 840

- 23 744

37 391

12 000

10 226

- 99 668

1 000

- 2 000

1 000

471

946

- 38 633

- 422 922
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T&S DOM:INCIDENTAL COST

68 000

MACHINERY AND
EQUIPMENT

COMP HARD & SYS DESKTOP

TOTAL BUDGET FOR
DIRECTORATE

MACHINERY AND
EQUIPMENT

11 900

654

654

28 432

1 073

135

176

16 105

88 269

3 821

1 045

922

29 817 110 162

1 488 000 33 967 34 953 176 552 284 947

68 000

1 420 000 33 967 34 953 176 552 284 947

25 000

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

GOODS AND SERVICES

25 000

18 000

TELECOM EQUIPMEQUIPMENT

DOMESTIC EQUIPMENT

48 000

11 900

1 346 12 522

300 000

48 000

5 069

232 000

1 071

1 945

4 000

734

2 080 20 608

70 000

VENUES AND FACILITIES

O/EXP:COURIER&DELIVERY
SERVS
O/EXP:PRINTING&PUBLICATIONS

OTHER EXPENDITURE

TRAINING AND STAFF
DEVELOPMENT
TRAIN&STAFF
DEV:EXTERNAL *
TRAIN&STAFF
DEV:MATERIALS&MANUALS *

T&S DOM WITHOUT OP:CAR
RENTAL
T&S DOM WITH OP:AIR
TRANSPORT
T&S DOM WITH OP:ROAD
TRANSPORT
T&S DOM :DOM NON
EMPLOYMENT

2 000

8 000

150 000

T&S DOM:ACCOMMODATION

T&S DOM:SPECIAL DAILY
ALLOWANCE
T&S DOM:FOOD&BEVER
(SERVED)

766 000

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE

P/P:SAFEGUARD&SECURITY

P/P:LAUNDRY SERVICES

P/P:FUMIGATION SERV

75 035

75 035

1 120

1 120

27 665

6 038

150

660

12 182

46 695

2 500

2 500

26 553

59 862

6 645

858

1 302

3 837

99 057

1 500

562

657

4 760

830

24 959

213 694

7 993
55 053

43 863

63 046

23 575

5 773

3 445

2 753

2 753

81 830

55 300

59 953

6 137

471

1 035

6 024

58 581 210 750

17 395

50

43 913

41 481

30 637 40084.8

1 415

660

874

12 766

87 833 278 653

95 232 214 539 238 323 427 182 228 889 308 381

95 232 214 539 238 323 427 182 228 889 308 381

42

42

46 955

6 076

129

2 865

56 025

3 738

3 738

2 115 835

2 115 835

11 900

101 668

12 359

125 927

320 483

297 330

301 761

24 908

5 777

792

6 775

42 434

1 000 259

101 255

101 255

- 729 090

68 000

- 797 090

25 000

18 000

25 000

68 000

36 100

- 101 668

- 12 359

- 77 927

- 320 483

2 670

- 69 761

45 092

- 1 777

1 209

1 225

107 566

- 234 259

142%

149%

4.4.1 Statement of Financial Performance

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year ended 31 March 2016
2015/2016 2014/2015
R'000
R'000
Assets
Current assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Cash (Voted Budget Funds )
Non-currents assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current Expenditures (Board Fees)
Transport Non Employee( Air & Road Transport)
Printing and publications
Other Expenses
( EXTRA EXPENDITURE ON VOTED FUNDS )

0
0
0
1,441
1,441

0
0
0
1,325
1,325

68
0
68
1,577

50
0
50
1,425

144
408
106
85
-743

0
0
0
0
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4.4.2Statement
StatementofofFinancial
FinancialPerformance
Performance
4.4.2

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year ended 31 March 2016
2015/2016 2014/2015
R'000
R'000
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income
Investment revenue

0
0

0
0

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Levies
Total revenue

0

0

0
0

0
0

Expenditure
Employee related costs

0

0

5656

Annual
Report
2015-2016
Annual
Report
2015-2016

4.4.3 Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2016
2015/2016 2014/2015
R'000
R'000
Cash flows from previous operating activities
Receipts
Levies, interest and penalties received
Other cash receipts from stakeholders
Interest income
Payments
Grants and project payments
Compesation of employees
Payments of suppliers
Net cash flows from operating activities

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
2,699
0

0
0
2,500
0

0

0
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South Africa
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the
annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the
annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the organisation as at the end of the financial year and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting as set out in Note
1 to the financial statements. The external auditor's is engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial
statements and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
organisation and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the organisation to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the organisation’s business is conducted in a manner that
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the organisation is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the organisation. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the organisation endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the organisation’s current financial position, they are satisfied that the organisation has or has
access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditor's are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the organisation's annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the organisation's external auditor's and their report is
presented on page 4.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 10, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board of directors on 21 December 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:
Approval of financial statements

L. Nare
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent
Auditor’s
Report Skills Authority
To
the Stakeholders
of National
We have audited the financial statements of National Skills Authority set out on pages 6 to 10, which comprise the
To the Stakeholders
National
statement
of financialofposition
asSkills
at 31Authority
March 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows
for the
year the
thenfinancial
ended, statements
and the notes,
comprising
a summary
accounting
and otherthe
We have
audited
of National
Skills
Authority of
setsignificant
out on pages
6 to 10,policies
which comprise
explanatory
statement ofinformation.
financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
Director’s
Responsibility
explanatory
information. for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
Director’s Responsibility
thefinancial
Financial
Statements
described
in the Note 1 toforthe
statements,
for determining that the basis of preparation is acceptable in the

circumstances
andresponsible
for such internal
as theofdirectors
determine
is necessary
to enable
of financial
The directors are
for thecontrol
preparation
the financial
statements
in accordance
withthe
thepreparation
basis of accounting
statements
free
from
due that
to fraud
or error.
described inthat
the are
Note
1 to
the material
financialmisstatements,
statements, forwhether
determining
the basis
of preparation is acceptable in the
circumstances and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
Auditor’s
Responsibility
statements
that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
Auditor’s Responsibility
accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and
plan and perform
audit an
to obtain
reasonable
assurance
about whether
financial
are free
from in
Our responsibility
is tothe
express
opinion
on these financial
statements
basedthe
on our
audit.statements
We conducted
our audit
material
misstatement.
accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
andaudit
plan involves
and perform
the audit
to obtain reasonable
assurance
about
whether
the financial
statementsinare
from
An
performing
procedures
to obtain audit
evidence
about
the amounts
and disclosures
the free
financial
material
misstatement.
statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement
of the
financial procedures
statements, to
whether
fraud or about
error. In
those
assessments,
auditor
An
audit involves
performing
obtain due
audittoevidence
themaking
amounts
andrisk
disclosures
in thethe
financial
considers internal
control relevant
to the
organisation’s
preparation
of the financial
in order
to design
statements.
The procedures
selected
depend
on the auditor’s
judgement,
includingstatements
the assessment
of the
risks ofaudit
material
procedures
that
in the circumstances,
not for
purpose
of expressing
opinion on the
misstatement
of are
the appropriate
financial statements,
whether due but
to fraud
orthe
error.
In making
those riskan
assessments,
theeffectiveness
auditor
of
the organisation’s
internal
control.
An audit
also includes
evaluating
thefinancial
appropriateness
of accounting
policiesaudit
used and
considers
internal control
relevant
to the
organisation’s
preparation
of the
statements
in order to design
the
reasonableness
of accounting
made by management,
well asofevaluating
of the
procedures
that are appropriate
in estimates
the circumstances,
but not for the as
purpose
expressingthe
anoverall
opinionpresentation
on the effectiveness
financial
statements. internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
of the organisation’s
the reasonableness
of accounting
made by ismanagement,
well as evaluating
thea overall
presentation
of the
We
believe that the audit
evidenceestimates
we have obtained
sufficient andas
appropriate
to provide
basis for
our audit opinion.
financial statements.
Opinion
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 March 2015 are prepared, in all
Opinion respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note1 to the financial statements.
material
In our opinion, the financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 March 2015 are prepared, in all
Basis
of respects,
Accounting
material
in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note1 to the financial statements.
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of
Basis of Accounting
accounting.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the organisation’s own accounting policies to satisfy
the
financial
information
needs we
of the
organisation’s
stakeholders.
As a result,
the financial
statements
not beofsuitable
Without
modifying
our opinion,
draw
attention to Note
1 to the financial
statements,
which
describesmay
the basis
for
another purpose.
accounting.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the organisation’s own accounting policies to satisfy
the financial information needs of the organisation’s stakeholders. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable
Other
reports
for another
purpose.
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we have read the Directors’ Report for
Other
reportsof identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial
the
purpose
statements.
The
Directors’
Report isstatements
the responsibility
of theended
directors.
Based
on reading
theread
Directors’
Report Report
we havefornot
As part of our
audit
of the financial
for the year
31 March
2015,
we have
the Directors’
identified
material
inconsistencies
reportinconsistencies
and the auditedbetween
financialthis
statements.
we financial
have not audited
the purpose
of identifying
whether between
there arethis
material
report andHowever,
the audited
the
Directors’The
Report
and accordingly
do responsibility
not express an
thereon.
statements.
Directors’
Report is the
of opinion
the directors.
Based on reading the Directors’ Report we have not
identified material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial statements. However, we have not audited
the Directors’ Report and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc.
Partner: Sanjay Ranchhoojee
Registered
AuditorInc.
Mazars
(Gauteng)
21
December
2016
Partner:
Sanjay
Ranchhoojee
Pretoria
Registered Auditor

ERASMUS
FORUM
A 434 RIGEL AVENUE SOUTH ERASMUSRAND PRETORIA 0181• PRIVATE BAG X4 HATFIELD 0028
21
December
2016
TEL: +27 12 347 3820 • FAX: +27 12 347 3737 • pta@mazars.co.za • www.mazars.co.za
Pretoria
MAZARS
(GAUTENG)
INC.A
● REGISTRATION
NUMBER 2000/026635/21
ERASMUS
FORUM
434 RIGEL AVENUE
SOUTH ERASMUSRAND

PRETORIA 0181• PRIVATE BAG X4 HATFIELD 0028
TEL:
+27 12 347 3820 • FAX: +27 12 347 3737 • pta@mazars.co.za • www.mazars.co.za
REGISTERED AUDITOR – A FIRM OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (SA) ● IRBA REGISTRATION NUMBER 928231A
MAZARS (GAUTENG) INC. ● REGISTRATION NUMBER 2000/026635/21
PARTNERS: H SAVEN (NATIONAL CHAIRMAN), S RANCHHOOJEE (MANAGING DIRECTOR), JF GROBLER, M FISHER, G de BEER, S ADLAM
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Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year
ended 31 March 2015.
1.

Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Entity specific basis of accounting as set out in Note 1
to the financial statements.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the organisation are set out in these annual
financial statements.
2.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
L. Nare
T. Tshefuta
P. Mongalo
J. Vass
C. Reynders
Z. Khuzwayo
P. Mokoena
S. Ndlovu
C. Matlakala
D. Diale
M. Ratshivhanda
J. Mashabela
S. Carthy
E. De Klerk
J. Matsho
N. Maziya
D. Mthalane
D. Mngadi
J. Samuels
E. Mashabela
T. Futshane
A. Mustak
J. Maphekeni
O. Siphuka
S. Hendricks

Nationality
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African

There have been no changes to the directorate for the period under review.
3.

Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
4.

Going concern

The directors believe that the organisation has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied
themselves that the organisation is in a sound financial position to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are
not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the orgnisation. The directors are also not aware of any
material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect
the organisation.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015
Note(s)

2015
R

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2

Total Assets

29 586 601
29 586 601

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Grant received in advance
Trade and other payables

3
4

29 586 501
100
29 586 601

Total Equity and Liabilities

29 586 601

6
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Note(s)

2015
R

Revenue
Government grants

3

413 499

Other income
Interest received

5

27 731

Operating expenses
Advertising
Bank charges
Catering
Conference facility
Printing and stationery
Promotions
Subscriptions

(20 144)
(5 585)
(22 800)
(319 665)
(40 020)
(29 218)
(3 798)
(441 230)

Profit for the year

-

7
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Statement of Cash Flows
Note(s)

2015
R

Cash flows from operating activities
6

Cash used in operations
Interest income

(27 631)
27 731

Net cash from operating activities

100

Cash flows from financing activities
Net movement on other financial liabilities

29 586 501

Net cash from financing activities

29 586 501

Total cash movement for the year

29 586 601
2

Total cash at end of the year

29 586 601

8
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies as set out below. The annual
financial statements have been prepared on the discretionary cash method of accounting . They are presented in South African
Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Financial instruments
Initial measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial
measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement
constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost
These include loans, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current
assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the
arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
1.2 Government grants
Grants that do not impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income when the grant proceeds are
receivable.
Grants that impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income only when the performance conditions
are met.
Grants received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied are recognised as a liability.
Grants are measured at the fair value of the asset received or receivable.
1.3 Revenue
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2015
R
2.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
3.

29 586 601

Grant received in advance

Grant received in advance:
Grant received
Amounts recognised as income in current year

30 000 000
(413 499)
29 586 501

4.

Trade and other payables

Other payables
5.

100

Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank
6.

27 731

Cash used in operations

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest received
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other payables

(27 731)
100
(27 631)

7.

Comparative figures

No comparative figures have been presented as these are the first annual financial statements of the company.
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South Africa
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
The directors are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the
annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the
annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the organisation as at the end of the financial year and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the basis of accounting as set out in Note
1 to the financial statements. The external auditor's is engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the financial
statements and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
organisation and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the orgnisation to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the organisation’s business is conducted in a manner that
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the organisation is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the organisation. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the organisation endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the organisation’s current financial position, they are satisfied that the organisation has or has
access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditor's are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the organisation's annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the organisation's external auditor's and their report is
presented on page 4.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 5 to 10, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board of directors on 21 December 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:
Approval of financial statements

L. Nare
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Independent
Auditor’s
Report Skills Authority
To
the Stakeholders
of National
We have audited the financial statements of National Skills Authority set out on pages 6 to 10, which comprise the
To the Stakeholders
National
statement
of financialofposition
asSkills
at 31Authority
March 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows
for the
year the
thenfinancial
ended, statements
and the notes,
comprising
a summary
accounting
and otherthe
We have
audited
of National
Skills
Authority of
setsignificant
out on pages
6 to 10,policies
which comprise
explanatory
statement ofinformation.
financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
Director’s
Responsibility
explanatory
information. for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting
Director’s Responsibility
thefinancial
Financial
Statements
described
in the Note 1 toforthe
statements,
for determining that the basis of preparation is acceptable in the

circumstances
andresponsible
for such internal
as theofdirectors
determine
is necessary
to enable
of financial
The directors are
for thecontrol
preparation
the financial
statements
in accordance
withthe
thepreparation
basis of accounting
statements
free
from
due that
to fraud
or error.
described inthat
the are
Note
1 to
the material
financialmisstatements,
statements, forwhether
determining
the basis
of preparation is acceptable in the
circumstances and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
Auditor’s
Responsibility
statements
that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
Auditor’s Responsibility
accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and
plan and perform
audit an
to obtain
reasonable
assurance
about whether
financial
are free
from in
Our responsibility
is tothe
express
opinion
on these financial
statements
basedthe
on our
audit.statements
We conducted
our audit
material
misstatement.
accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
andaudit
plan involves
and perform
the audit
to obtain reasonable
assurance
about
whether
the financial
statementsinare
from
An
performing
procedures
to obtain audit
evidence
about
the amounts
and disclosures
the free
financial
material
misstatement.
statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement
of the
financial procedures
statements, to
whether
fraud or about
error. In
those
assessments,
auditor
An
audit involves
performing
obtain due
audittoevidence
themaking
amounts
andrisk
disclosures
in thethe
financial
considers internal
control relevant
to the
organisation’s
preparation
of the financial
in order
to design
statements.
The procedures
selected
depend
on the auditor’s
judgement,
includingstatements
the assessment
of the
risks ofaudit
material
procedures
that
in the circumstances,
not for
purpose
of expressing
opinion on the
misstatement
of are
the appropriate
financial statements,
whether due but
to fraud
orthe
error.
In making
those riskan
assessments,
theeffectiveness
auditor
of
the organisation’s
internal
control.
An audit
also includes
evaluating
thefinancial
appropriateness
of accounting
policiesaudit
used and
considers
internal control
relevant
to the
organisation’s
preparation
of the
statements
in order to design
the
reasonableness
of accounting
made by management,
well asofevaluating
of the
procedures
that are appropriate
in estimates
the circumstances,
but not for the as
purpose
expressingthe
anoverall
opinionpresentation
on the effectiveness
financial
statements. internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
of the organisation’s
the reasonableness
of accounting
made by ismanagement,
well as evaluating
thea overall
presentation
of the
We
believe that the audit
evidenceestimates
we have obtained
sufficient andas
appropriate
to provide
basis for
our audit opinion.
financial statements.
Opinion
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 March 2015 are prepared, in all
Opinion respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note1 to the financial statements.
material
In our opinion, the financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 March 2016 are prepared, in all
Basis
of respects,
Accounting
material
in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note1 to the financial statements.
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of
Basis of Accounting
accounting.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the organisation’s own accounting policies to satisfy
the
financial
information
needs we
of the
organisation’s
stakeholders.
As a result,
the financial
statements
not beofsuitable
Without
modifying
our opinion,
draw
attention to Note
1 to the financial
statements,
which
describesmay
the basis
for
another purpose.
accounting.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the organisation’s own accounting policies to satisfy
the financial information needs of the organisation’s stakeholders. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable
Other
reports
for another
purpose.
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, we have read the Directors’ Report for
Other
reportsof identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial
the
purpose
statements.
The
Directors’
Report isstatements
the responsibility
of theended
directors.
Based
on reading
theread
Directors’
Report we
havefornot
As part of our
audit
of the financial
for the year
31 March
2016,
we have
the Directors’
Report
identified
material
inconsistencies
reportinconsistencies
and the auditedbetween
financialthis
statements.
we financial
have not audited
the purpose
of identifying
whether between
there arethis
material
report andHowever,
the audited
the
Directors’The
Report
and accordingly
do responsibility
not express an
thereon.
statements.
Directors’
Report is the
of opinion
the directors.
Based on reading the Directors’ Report we have not
identified material inconsistencies between this report and the audited financial statements. However, we have not audited
the Directors’ Report and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.
Mazars (Gauteng) Inc.
Partner: Sanjay Ranchhoojee
Registered
AuditorInc.
Mazars (Gauteng)
21
December
2016
Partner:
Sanjay
Ranchhoojee
Pretoria
Registered Auditor
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Directors' Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
1.

Review of financial results and activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting as set out in Note 1 to the
financial statements. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these annual financial
statements.
2.

Directors

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
L. Nare
T. Tshefuta
P. Mongalo
J. Vass
C. Reynders
Z. Khuzwayo
P. Mokoena
S. Ndlovu
C. Matlakala
D. Diale
M. Ratshivhanda
J. Mashabela
S. Carthy
E. De Klerk
J. Matsho
N. Maziya
D. Mthalane
D. Mngadi
J. Samuels
E. Mashabela
T. Futshane
A. Mustak
J. Maphekeni
O. Siphuka
S. Hendricks
3.

Nationality
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African
South African

Events after the reporting period

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
4.

Going concern

The directors believe that the organisation has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied
themselves that the organisation is in a sound financial position to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are
not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the organisation. The directors are also not aware of any
material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect
the organisation.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
Note(s)

2016
R

2015
R

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2

Total Assets

23 688 054

29 586 601

23 688 054

29 586 601

23 687 954
100

29 586 501
100

23 688 054

29 586 601

23 688 054

29 586 601

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Grants received in advance
Trade and other payables

3
4

Total Equity and Liabilities

6
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Note(s)

2016
R

2015
R

Revenue
Government grants

3

5 898 547

413 499

Other income
Interest received

5

1 322 893

27 731

(1 317 399)
(8 548)
(2 871 632)
(197 569)
(1 923 454)
(140 106)
(194 576)
(270 903)
(4 040)
(64 853)
(228 360)

(20 144)
(5 585)
(22 800)
(319 665)
(40 020)
(29 218)
(3 798)
-

(7 221 440)

(441 230)

-

-

Operating expenses
Advertising
Bank charges
Consulting and professional fees
Catering
Conference facility
Legal expenses
Printing and stationery
Promotions
Subscriptions
Training
Travel - local
Profit for the year
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Statement of Cash Flows
Note(s)

2016
R

2015
R

Cash flows from operating activities
6

Cash used in operations
Interest income
Net cash from operating activities

(1 322 893)
1 322 893

(27 631)
27 731

-

100

Cash flows from financing activities
Net movement on other financial liabilities

(5 898 547)

29 586 501

Net cash from financing activities

(5 898 547)

29 586 501

Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year

(5 898 547)
29 586 601

29 586 601
-

23 688 054

29 586 601

2

Total cash at end of the year
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Accounting Policies
1.

Presentation of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies as set out below. The annual
financial statements have been prepared on the discretionary cash method of accounting. They are presented in South African
Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Financial instruments
Initial measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction costs except in the initial
measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement
constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost
These include loans, cash and cash equivalents and trade payables. Those debt instruments which meet the criteria are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current
assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected to be received or paid, unless the
arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
1.2 Government grants
Grants that do not impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income when the grant proceeds are
receivable.
Grants that impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income only when the performance conditions
are met.
Grants received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied are recognised as a liability.
Grants are measured at the fair value of the asset received or receivable.
1.3 Revenue
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2016
R
2.

2015
R

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank balances
3.

30 000 000
(413 499)

23 687 954

29 586 501

100

100

1 322 893

27 731

-

-

Investment revenue

Interest revenue
Bank
6.

29 586 501
(5 898 547)

Trade and other payables

Other payables
5.

29 586 601

Grants received in advance

Grants received in advance:
Opening balance
Amounts recognised as income in current year

4.

23 688 054

Cash used in operations

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest received
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other payables

(1 322 893)
(1 322 893)

(27 731)
100
(27 631)
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Part 7
Annexures

7.1 Acronyms
CHE

Council for Higher Education

DG

Director-General of the Department of Higher Education and Training

DHET

Department of Higher Education and Training

DoL

Department of Labour

DPSA

Department Of Public Service and Administration

ECD

Early Childhood Development

FET

Further Education and Training

HET

Higher Education and Training

HESA

Higher Education South Africa

HRDC

Human Resource Development Council

HRDSA

Human Resource Development South Africa

HSRC

Human Sciences Research Council

IT

Information Technology

NDP

National Development Plan

NGP

National Growth Path

NSA

National Skills Authority

NSD

National Skills Development

NSDP

National Skills Development Policy

NSDS

National Skills Development Strategy

NSF

National Skills Fund

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PSDF

Provincial Skills Development Forums

PSDP

Provincial Skills Development Plans

PSET

Post-School Education and Training

QCTO

Quality Council for Trades and Occupations

QP

Quality Provision

SAACI

Swiss South African Cooperative Initiative

SASCE

Southern African Society for Corporative Education

SAQA

South African Qualifications Authority

SD

Skills Development

SDA

Skills Development Act

SDLA

Skills Development Levies Act

SDLA

Skills Development Levy

SETA

Sector Education and Training Authority

TVET

Technical and Vocational Education and Training

UJ

University of Johannesburg

WIL

Work Integrated Learning
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